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Note: The Company implemented a restructuring program in 1999 at a cost of $66.4 million, and reported special charges of $36.3 million in 2001.
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The cover of this report is intended to suggest the

continuing transformation of our company.

Transformation, not for the sake of transformation,

but rather as a creative, dynamic response to changing

technology and the changing character of the

industries we serve.

No company can hope to grow and prosper if it treats

the dictum that one must stick to his knitting as an

absolute invariable. The knitting must change to

accommodate significant alterations in markets and

science – and as it changes, the company must pay

continuous attention to that new, transformed knitting.

In our case, the transformation is from the analog to

the digital world, and from products that provide the

highest quality musical reproduction to multi-

functional Infotainment systems. We think of

Infotainment as the art of reducing a set of complex

functions to a single, integrated, transparent, and

simple solution. We are doing just that in the

automotive world today. We will do it soon in

the consumer world, and we call it Harman

Infotainment.

That complex of functions includes high-quality

audio and video reproduction, voice-activated

telephone, climate control, navigation, diagnostics,

and Internet access. We have become the leading

designer and manufacturer of such systems, even as

a majority of the automakers have been our

customers for branded high-quality audio systems

over the years.

Of the many functions that comprise Infotainment

systems, the most familiar today are telephone and

navigation. It is possible to provide these functions

using traditional analog technology by packaging

separate systems in a reasonably manageable form.

Such a traditional approach is essentially a patchwork

that generates more cost, wiring, and weight, plus

additional uncertainty about reliability and the

feasibility of future upgrades. For the typical auto

buyer, however, there is little visible difference

between our digital systems and those assemblies of

separate functional systems that now appear in some

other cars. For the most part, the distinctions remain

fairly subtle.

For example, an alternative to the Harman

Infotainment approach uses the radio as a multi-

function box with several inputs. That eliminates

the optical BUS, which is the fundamental of

our “MOST” architecture, and it is relatively

message from The Executive Chairman

We think of Infotainment as the art of reducing a set of complex functions
to a single, integrated, transparent, and simple solution.We are doing just
that in the automotive world today.We will do it soon in the consumer
world, and we call it Harman Infotainment.
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The exacting standards of the Bavarian Motor Works are legendary. So when their engineers were searching

for a partner to integrate advanced digital systems into their entire line of cars, they turned to a company 

with an equally storied history of innovation – Harman International. For over 50 years, the companies of

Harman International have been developing the industry’s most advanced new technology. From the world’s

first factory-installed car stereo that brought hi-fi to the highway in 1948, to groundbreaking Harman Infotainment

systems that bring up-to-the-second information and cutting-edge entertainment to your car in 2003.You

can see the results of our most recent work in the remarkably intuitive on-board computer system of the

BMW 5 Series.Harman engineering,combined with industry-standard MOST technology,integrates the audio

THE BMW 5 SERIES.
NOW, MORE ULTIMATE.



and navigation systems into one simple yet sophisticated interface – allowing you to access the complete

range of in-vehicle services quickly and easily. Additionally, our voice-activated control system lets you 

manage all of these systems and talk on a cell phone hands-free. And it all works side-by-side with one of 

the world’s most breathtaking audio systems. A custom version of our Harman Kardon LOGIC 7 

system that features 13 high-fidelity loudspeakers, Digital Dynamic Volume Control and multi-channel 

surround sound for a uniquely rich,enveloping musical experience. So,with help from Harman Infotainment,

the new BMW 5 Series is the ultimate driving, calling, heating, cooling, navigating and listening-to-incredible-

music machine.To see what kind of superlatives we can add to your car, visit harman.com/infotainment.

Parent of the great Harman Kardon, Infinity, JBL, Becker, Lexicon and Mark Levinson brands.



straightforward. On the other hand, it is very difficult

to move beyond the first simple combination. And as

additional functions become necessary or desirable,

the limitations of such a system become obvious.

It requires complex wiring harnesses. It adds

substantial weight and hardware mass. It is slower

and less efficient. In the language of the engineers,

the more bandwidth required, the more necessary is

a digitally integrated system.

I have spoken recently of Harman’s “secret”. The

so-called secret is what happens going forward,

because as the number of truly useful functions in the

car multiplies, and as infotainment and audio systems

are combined, we believe that there is no way to get

the job done effectively except through a software-

centered, digitally-integrated system such as the

Harman Infotainment System. Where the patchwork

systems approach necessitates more and more boxes,

the Harman approach promises the next generation

of integration, and incorporates or subsumes the

additional functions within the core structure of our

Infotainment system.

Consider that relatively soon, today’s music,

navigation/hands-free telephone assemblies will yield

to inter-operable systems that couple those services

with such additional functions as cabin quieting,

climate control, video entertainment, automatic

diagnostics, concierge services, Internet access, and

enormously improved navigation – all accessible

through an intuitive, multi-modal interface. You will

begin with a knob and continue to exercise control

through a highly responsive voice-activated system.

One can think of it as dialog between the driver and

the car.

With an operating platform optimized for the

particular vehicle and with beautifully structured

automotive software, it is now possible to provide

powerful, multi-function, multi-user communications

in real time, where each function enhances the

effectiveness of the others. That is both the secret and

the beauty of Harman Infotainment.

We believe that the day will come when it is clear that

any approach other than the one we follow will not

make it. At that time, every automaker will need

what Harman provides. It is, of course, likely that

some automakers will look to another source –

a different source – but that is the time when our

experience and our enormous head start should pay

us very large dividends.

I have presented the centrality of our business and the

key to our future up front in this report because it
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We believe that the day will come when it is clear that any approach
other than the one we follow will not make it. At that time, every
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would otherwise be difficult to understand how

Harman International fits in the current landscape

and, perhaps, difficult to appreciate the substantial

competitive advantage we have developed over the

last number of years. As of this writing, there are

more than one million vehicles on the road with one

form of Harman Infotainment System or another.

Because there is an enormous difference between an

academic exercise conducted in an engineering

laboratory and the real time, real circumstance

represented by those many vehicles on the road – that

difference provides us with a multi-year advantage we

intend to take full advantage of.

We have completed a historic year at Harman. In last

year’s report, I spoke of fiscal 2003 as a transition year

– a transforming year for our company. That it has

proved to be. We set new records in sales and earnings.

Sales for the year totaled $2.2 billion and earnings

reached $3.10 per share. We added new clients and

new platforms within old clients. We placed an

additional 300,000 Harman Infotainment vehicles on

the road. We saw our stock price at record levels, and

we added significantly to our engineering resources

through a series of strategic acquisitions. Our

technologies are impressive. They now include speech

engines, “MOST” fiber optic networks, hands-free

microphones, multi-channel audio signal processing,

operating systems, memory-based navigation, digital

video, integrated telephone modules, man-machine

interface devices, rear seat entertainment, DVD,

state-of-the-art acoustics, and embedded real-time

parallel processing.

In no small part, our success in fiscal 2003 and our

anticipation that we will have a strong fiscal 2004 is

the consequence of work we have done in the last

several years on both the Professional and Consumer

sides of our business. We think of our Professional

business as a steady-as-you-go enterprise. It is less

positively affected by vigorous economic times than

are some other businesses, and it is less negatively

affected in poor economic climates. It is a solid

business, in which we have sought to establish

ourselves as the “turnkey manufacturer” providing

every consequential aspect of the hardware and,

increasingly, of the software systems that control it. In

that sense, we are moving toward creating a Harman

Infotainment expression in the Professional sound

business. Providing maximum control of the audio in

a theatre or stadium, and doing it through graceful

software architecture is becoming our Professional

hallmark. We intend to continue along that path in

the years ahead.

It is widely recognized that consumer electronics is a

difficult business. We have felt it wise to retain an

active role in that world because the combination of

our engineering and our internationally recognized

brands has helped to fuel and inform our rapidly

developing OEM business. Even as the consumer

electronics marketplace has experienced very difficult

times over the last number of years, we have worked

hard and effectively to reduce the scale of our

engagement while maintaining both a world class

reputation and operating margins that permit us to

separate ourselves from the many companies that lose
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HARMAN INFOTAINMENT.
SPREADING WORLD PEACE
ONE BACKSEAT AT A TIME.

©2003 Harman International Industries, Incorporated.Teletubbies: ®,™,© Ragdoll Ltd. Screen image simulated. DVD logo is a trademark of DVD Format/Logo Licensing Corporation.

A new era of tranquility is spreading across the world in family cars like the Lexus LX thanks to the 

road-tested,fully integrated rear-seat DVD players being created by the companies of Harman International.

Designed to provide pristine digital quality and to stand up to the rigors of any family road trip, they’re the

latest in a long line of innovations from the company that developed the first factory-installed car radios

over 50 years ago. And they’re an integral part of an entirely new category of in-vehicle technology called

Harman Infotainment. It’s the seamless integration of Internet, satellite, cellular and GPS information 

systems coupled with Harman high-fidelity entertainment systems. So when the kids are happily occupied

in the backseat, parents can take advantage of the Harman Infotainment technology in the front seats.



Like our intuitive new On Line Pro GPS Navigation System that analyzes real-time traffic conditions 

and immediately suggests alternate routes when appropriate.(So you can avoid traffic jams before you ever

see them.) And our voice-activated control systems that allow you to talk on mobile phones and even 

operate navigation and audio systems by voice without ever taking your eyes off the road. Or your hands

off the wheel. And it all works side-by-side with our industry-leading audio systems. Like the LOGIC 7 

system that uses advanced DSP (Digital Signal Processing) to create an incredibly lush and enveloping 

surround sound experience right in your car. To see how we can bring a little peace, quiet and digital 

satellite technology to your next road trip, visit harman.com/infotainment.

Parent of the great Harman Kardon, Infinity, JBL, Becker, Lexicon and Mark Levinson brands.
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Talking of transformation, you will note that our long term “corporate jazz quartet” is now a
quintet. Dr. Erich Geiger has headed our worldwide automotive OEM business since 1996. He has
encouraged and facilitated the promotion of Harald Brunini to that role, and with Harald now in place
and in charge as President of our OEM operations, Erich has joined the corporate quintet as
Harman International’s Chief Technology Officer and as Chairman of Harman/Becker.



large amounts of money each year. The good news

is that our work in Harman Infotainment carries

substantial opportunity and promise for the

development of self-contained, fully integrated,

highly sophisticated but easy-to-use consumer audio

and video systems. It is our wish and our purpose

to bring such products to market over the

upcoming years.

Finally, as I write about this company’s willingness

and ability to transform itself, I realize that history is

full of examples of companies that failed to act and,

as a consequence, disappeared. This year, we are

celebrating the founding of our company in 1953.

Half a century is a long time in American industry;

it represents almost one-quarter of the entire life of

the United States of America, and we are still

here. Harman International today is “the

Infotainment Company.” It incorporates the original

Harman/Kardon as one of its units, and the

Harman/Kardon name continues to carry great

meaning and great brand value, but Harman/Kardon

and Harman International are very different from

what they were fifty, twenty, or even five years ago.

Then, as now, the company valued integrity, honesty,

ethical conduct, creativeness, industrial design, and

quality above all. The development of its people was

viewed then as a consequential way to ensure serious

and growing returns to the shareholders. It still is.

Today we think of our shareholders, employees,

customers, and suppliers as stakeholders in Harman

International, and we are committed to the view that

a healthy, honest, and responsible company serves

them all.

We enter the new fiscal year with high confidence that

despite very uncertain worldwide economies, we will

again reach new levels in both sales and earnings.

Sincerely,
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The good news is that our work in Harman Infotainment
carries substantial opportunity and promise for the development of
self-contained, fully integrated...highly sophisticated but easy-to-use
consumer audio and video systems.

Sidney Harman

Executive Chairman
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HARMAN INFOTAINMENT.
YOU DRIVE.

WE’LL NAVIGATE,
HANDLE YOUR CALLS AND 

KEEP YOU ENTERTAINED.

For over 50 years, the companies of Harman International have been developing the industry’s 

most advanced electronics systems. From the very first factory-installed car stereo in 1948 to 

the latest digital systems in 2003. Our latest undertaking is the seamless integration of in-vehicle 

information systems with Harman high-fidelity enter tainment systems to create an entirely 

new category. It’s called Harman Infotainment. And you can experience it today in sophisticated 

new Mercedes-Benz automobiles. Our remarkably intuitive new COMAND DVD GPS Navigation

System with map and symbol display options makes it incredibly easy to get directions, stay on 

course and arrive safely at your final destination. Our voice-activated control systems allow you 



Parent of the great Harman Kardon, Infinity, JBL, Becker, Lexicon and Mark Levinson brands.

to talk on a cell phone and operate the navigation and audio systems by voice. Without ever 

taking your eyes off the road. Or your hands off the wheel. Our fully integrated DVD entertainment

systems are travel-tested to stand up to any road trip. And they all work side-by-side with our 

legendary car audio systems. Including the revolutionary Harman Kardon LOGIC 7 system that 

features up to 12 strategically placed high-fidelity loudspeakers, Digital Dynamic Volume Control 

to counteract wind and road noise and multi-channel surround sound technology for a uniquely 

rich, enveloping musical experience.To learn more about what we can do for your car, just visit 

harman.com/infotainment.We’ll take it from there.
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The Company achieved excellent results in 2003.

Sales reached $2.2 billion, an increase of 22 percent

over prior year sales of $1.8 billion. Earnings were

$3.10 per share, an increase of $1.40 per share or

82 percent above the prior year’s earnings. We are

gratified to have exceeded our long-stated earnings

target of $3.00 a share. In doing so we overcame the

impact of negative events such as SARS, dock strikes,

the bankruptcies of some retail accounts, and

necessary internal restructurings. And our results

are net of the 11¢ cost per share of expensing

stock options, a decision reached after the fiscal year

had begun. In a year when most consumer

electronic product companies faltered, we achieved

record results.

Our continuing efforts to reduce working capital and

improve cash flow also paid off. Our cash and cash

equivalents balance was $148 million at year end, an

increase of $32 million. Working capital, net of cash,

represented 15.2 percent of sales; it was 18.1 percent

last year. We are rapidly approaching our long-term

goal of 15 percent of sales in working capital. That

goal was established only two years ago. We have

further opportunities to reduce working capital and

have lowered the long-term target to 12 percent

of sales.

Capital expenditures were under good control.

Against a budget of $130 million, we spent $115

million, representing five percent of sales. The bulk

of the expenditures was to provide capacity for our

high-growth automotive OEM activities and to

achieve productivity gains across the company.

We negotiated a new and attractive revolving credit

bank facility, and we generated a quarter billion

dollars in cash flow from operations.

Our OEM business performed splendidly. After the

successful launch of the Harman Infotainment

System in the BMW 7 Series in fiscal 2001, we

produced new, comprehensive Infotainment Systems

for the Mercedes-Benz E class, the Audi 8 and the

Porsche Cayenne.

And we received important new OEM contracts.

Buick will introduce a Harman/Kardon premium

sound system in fiscal 2005. It will be our first

offering in the General Motors range. The Mercury

division of Ford Motor Company will introduce its

first Infinity premium sound system in fiscal 2006.

Our consumer companies continued to make progress.

The program to improve international operations

was fully implemented. All remote warehouses were

message from The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer

We are in the business of integrating complex functions into a single,
simple solution. We call our new products “Infotainment Systems”
because they provide both information and entertainment.
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consolidated into one modern facility in Holland.

Structural costs were reduced substantially while new

products with improved margins were introduced.

The Harman Specialty Group had a difficult year as it

struggled with adverse markets and unacceptable

product problems. We have consolidated Mark

Levinson and Lexicon operations in our Bedford,

Massachusetts facility, and have substantially

increased the Group’s development and engineering

resources. New state of the art products will appear

this fall as we commit ourselves to a dynamic future

for Mark Levinson and Lexicon.

The Professional Group had a good year. JBL’s new

Vertec systems provide critical sound reinforcement

in such major venues as the magnificent new Walt

Disney Concert Hall (see page 2 and the back cover of

this report). AKG continued its progress in wireless

applications, and its OEM division received new

contracts for telephone capsules from top cellular

manufacturers.

Fiscal 2004 presents itself attractively. It begins with

first shipments of Harman Infotainment Systems for

the acclaimed new BMW 5 Series. It will continue

with new systems for the Mercedes-Benz C Class and

the Audi 6. And in the U.S., we will launch our

first Harman Infotainment System in the new Dodge

Ram truck.

The Company’s engineering was strengthened with

the acquisition of two small but invaluable software

firms. Wavemakers, based in Vancouver, provides

important skills and intellectual property in the area

of speech recognition. Its patented “Windblocker”

and “Wavebeam” technologies enable the user to

give clear voice commands in a car even when the

convertible top is down. Combined with Temic

speech engines and AKG microphones, Wavemakers

technology will provide the most advanced speech

processing and voice recognition activitation in an

automobile. Margi Systems in Fremont, California

adds important engineering resources in video

streaming and wireless video transmission. These

capabilities add significantly to our growing video

competence in the car and at home.

The direction of the Company is clear. We are in the

business of integrating complex functions into a

single, simple solution. We call our new products

“Harman Infotainment Systems” because they

provide both information and entertainment.

The direction is clear and our resolve is firm.

Sincerely,

Gregory Stapleton
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Bernard Girod
Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer



My colleagues have described a powerful and growing

business. Still, this management team knows that the

success of the firm is, and will always be driven by the

effectiveness of our people. No matter how sophisticated

our technology, our products, and our processes, if the

humans in the firm are not committed, the firm will

not function well. Software and hardware engineers,

factory workers, accounts receivable and payable clerks,

industrial design specialists are all people with different

talents, interests, and needs. We recognize those

differences and try to create a work environment in

which management assists, trains, and works together

with our employees as a team.

One expression of this commitment is found in our

working capital results. Six years ago, working capital,

net of cash, represented thirty-one percent of sales.

Management encouraged and guided our people on

how to improve working capital performance, and our

compensation programs were aligned to reward such

progress.

Our people attacked the problem vigorously, patiently,

and creatively. Today, working capital net of cash, as

a percentage of sales, is fifteen percent. It is a significant

achievement, accomplished because the entire

organization executed as a team. There are many other

expressions of our shared commitment, but this one is

typical, and I enjoy reviewing it.

The company ended the year with a greatly strengthened

balance sheet. Cash flow from operations was a record

$250 million. Future free cash flow will be used to reduce

debt and to continue the share repurchase program.

It is a good time to serve as the Chief Financial Officer.

message from The Chief Financial Officer

Frank Meredith
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Sincerely,
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Overview 

Harman International Industries, Inc. designs, manufactures and markets high-quality, high

fidelity audio products and electronic systems for the consumer and professional markets. The

Company is organized into segments based on the end-user markets they serve. The Consumer

Systems Group designs, manufactures and markets loudspeakers, audio electronics and infotain-

ment systems for vehicles, home audio, video and computer applications. The Professional Group

designs, manufactures and markets loudspeakers and electronics used by audio professionals in

concert halls, stadiums, airports and other buildings and for recording, broadcast, cinema and

music reproduction applications.

The Company’s primary manufacturing facilities in the U.S. are located in California, Indiana,

Kentucky and Utah. The Company’s primary international manufacturing facilities are located in

Germany, Austria, the United Kingdom, Mexico, France, Sweden, China and Hungary. The

Company’s products are sold worldwide with the largest markets being the U.S. and Germany.

The Company experiences seasonal fluctuations in sales and earnings. The first fiscal quarter is

generally the weakest due to automotive model changeovers and the summer holidays in Europe.

Variations in seasonal demand among end-markets may also cause operating results to vary from

quarter to quarter.

Sales

Net sales increased 22 percent in fiscal 2003 to $2.229 billion, compared to $1.826 billion in fiscal

2002 and $1.717 billion in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2003, foreign currency translation contributed

$185 million to net sales compared to the prior year. In fiscal 2002, the foreign currency impact

was minimal when compared to the prior year.

Presented below is a summary of sales by business segment:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(in thousands)                                          Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002                    Fiscal 2001

$ % $ % $ %

Consumer Systems Group $  1,782,521 80% $  1,401,446 77% $  1,267,358 74%

Professional Group   445,998 20% 424,742 23% 449,189 26%

Total $  2,228,519 100% $  1,826,188 100% $  1,716,547 100%



Consumer Systems Group — The Consumer Systems Group reported net sales of $1.783 billion in

fiscal 2003 compared to net sales of $1.401 billion in fiscal 2002, representing an increase of $382

million or 27 percent. Foreign currency translation contributed approximately $166 million to net

sales in fiscal 2003 compared to the prior fiscal year. Net sales also increased by $268 million as a

result of higher sales of speakers and electronics to automobile manufacturers primarily located

in Germany. These higher sales are primarily the result of greater unit sales of the Company’s new

infotainment systems. Sales of speakers and electronics to retail customers decreased by $11 million

compared to the prior year. Sales of speakers and electronics for computer applications were lower

by $41 million as a result of the phase out of a supply agreement with a computer manufacturer

located in the United States.

In fiscal 2002, Consumer Systems Group sales of $1.401 billion compared to sales of $1.267 

billion in fiscal 2001, representing an increase of $134 million or 11 percent. In fiscal 2002, the

foreign currency impact on sales was minimal versus fiscal 2001. The increase was due to high-

er sales of speakers and electronics to automotive customers of $138 million offset by a modest

decline in sales to retail customers.

Professional Group — Professional Group net sales for fiscal 2003 were $446.0 million compared

with $424.7 million in fiscal 2002, an increase of $21.3 million or 5 percent. The impact of foreign

currency translation contributed approximately $19.4 million to fiscal 2003 net sales compared to

the previous year.

In fiscal 2002, Professional Group sales were $424.7 million compared with $449.2 million in

fiscal 2001, a decrease of $24.5 million. In fiscal 2002, the foreign currency impact on sales was

minimal versus fiscal 2001. The decrease in sales was due in part to the sale of a business unit in

the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. This business unit accounted for approximately $11 million of

sales in the prior year.

Gross Profit

The consolidated gross profit percentage was 29.2 percent in fiscal 2003, compared to 27.4 percent

in fiscal 2002. The increased gross profit margin was substantially due to higher sales to automo-

tive customers, which results in a shift in the Company’s overall product mix. Management

presently expects that gross profit margins will continue to improve in fiscal 2004 as the trend of

higher sales to automotive customers continues.
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The consolidated gross profit percentage was 27.4 percent in fiscal 2002 compared to 26.1 percent

in fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2001 gross margin was reduced 0.8 percentage points as a result of special

charges. These charges reduced fiscal 2001 gross margin by $8.6 million for inventory write-downs

and $5.3 million for other items including impaired asset write-downs. The remaining increase 

in gross profit margin was due to product mix as sales to automotive customers increased as a 

percentage of total company sales. Productivity enhancements at factories in the United States 

also contributed.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were 21.7 percent in fiscal

years 2003 and 2002. In fiscal 2003, research and development costs were $143.1 million, or 

6 percent of sales, compared to $109.9 million in fiscal 2002, which also represented 6 percent

of sales. The research and development costs were substantially incurred in the Consumer

Systems Group to support engineering development for our automotive customers. Professional

Group research and development costs in fiscal 2003 were slightly above the prior year. Selling,

general and administrative expenses also included increased selling costs in the Consumer

Systems Group to support higher sales to automotive customers and enhanced marketing efforts

to support consumer home audio product sales hampered by a weak economic environment.

Professional Group selling costs were also above the prior year. In addition, selling, general and

administrative expenses included $5.0 million for the expensing of stock options in accordance

with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 123, and excluded $7.7 million for the

amortization of goodwill in accordance with SFAS 142 in fiscal 2003.

Management anticipates selling, general and administrative expenses to continue as approxi-

mately 22 percent of sales in fiscal 2004. However, new customer awards may require the

Company to fund additional non-reimbursable research and development initiatives. In the event

of such an award, the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses may change.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were 21.7 percent in fiscal

2002 compared with 22.0 percent in fiscal 2001. Special charges accounted for 1.4 percentage

points in fiscal 2001. These charges included $22.4 million to terminate distributors in the U.K.

and Germany, to cover severance costs for 250 employees, to write-off impaired assets, and to close 

factories in the U.K. and Argentina. This is offset by an increase in these costs as a percentage of

sales during fiscal 2002 primarily due to increased research and development costs to support the

development of new automotive products in the Consumer Systems Group. Also included in 

selling, general and administrative expenses was an $8.3 million legal charge paid during 2002.

Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Professional Group were approximately equal

to the prior year. Research and development expenses were $109.9 million, or 6 percent of sales,

in fiscal 2002 compared with $88.7 million, or 5.2 percent of sales, in fiscal 2001.
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Operating Income

Fiscal 2003 operating income was 7.5 percent of sales compared with 5.7 percent in fiscal 2002.

The increase in profitability is a result of product mix as a greater percentage of total company

sales are from the Consumer System Group businesses supplying automotive customers.

In the Professional Group, operating profit performance was slightly below the prior year 

partially due to the closure and consolidation of European facilities and the bankruptcy of a 

professional retailer.

Fiscal 2002 operating income was 5.7 percent of sales compared with 4.2 percent in fiscal 2001.

Special charges reduced operating income as a percent of sales by 2.1 percentage points in fiscal

2001. This is offset by an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage

of sales at the Consumer Systems Group as a result of increased research and development costs

to support future automotive programs.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $22.6 million in fiscal 2003 compared with $22.4 million in fiscal 

2002. Interest expense increased slightly due to higher average borrowings. The weighted

average interest rate of 5.0 was the same as the prior year. The Company uses interest rate swaps

to convert a portion of its fixed rate debt into floating rate debt. Fiscal 2002 interest expense of

$22.4 million compared to $25.0 million in fiscal 2001. Interest expense decreased in fiscal 2002

due to lower average interest rates and the use of interest rate swaps.

The weighted average interest rate in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 was 5.0 percent compared to 6.3

percent in fiscal 2001. The weighted average borrowings were $465.1 million, $451.9 million and

$397.2 million for fiscal years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The weighted average

rates were the same for the fiscal years ended 2003 and 2002 primarily due to the effective use of

interest rate swaps to convert fixed rate debt to variable rate debt. The decrease in rates in fiscal

2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was due to lower interest rates and the use of interest rate swaps.

Miscellaneous Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses were $1.8 million in fiscal 2003 compared to $0.6 million in fiscal 2002

and $1.2 million in fiscal 2001. Fiscal 2003 miscellaneous expenses were comprised primarily of

bank charges. In fiscal years 2002 and 2001, bank charges of $1.6 million and $1.5 million,

respectively, were included in miscellaneous expenses.
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Income Before Taxes and Minority Interest

In fiscal 2003, the Company reported income before taxes of $142.5 million. In fiscal 2002, the

Company reported $80.2 million of income before taxes and minority interest. And, in fiscal 2001,

we reported income before taxes and minority interest of $45.1 million, inclusive of $36.3 million

of special charges.

Income Taxes

The Company reported fiscal 2003 income tax expense of $37.0 million, an effective tax rate of

26.0 percent, compared with income tax expense of $22.6 million, an effective tax rate of 28.2

percent in fiscal 2002, and $12.7 million, an effective tax rate of 28.2 percent in fiscal 2001. The

effective tax rates for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001 were below the U.S. statutory rate due to

utilization of tax credits, realization of tax benefits for United States exports and the utilization

of tax loss carryforwards at certain foreign subsidiaries. Additional rate benefit was realized in 

fiscal 2003 due to foreign restructuring that generated additional interest deductions. In fiscal

2004, management expects the Company to have an effective tax rate of 29 percent.

Net Income

Net income for fiscal 2003 was $105.4 million, compared with net income of $57.5 million in 

fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2001, net income was $32.4 million, inclusive of $25.8 million of special

charges, net of tax effect.

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Harman International primarily finances its working capital requirements through cash generated

by operations, cash borrowings and normal trade credit.

Net working capital, excluding short-term debt and cash, was $337.6 million at June 30, 2003,

compared with working capital of $331.3 million at June 30, 2002. The increase primarily

resulted from higher accounts receivable and inventory balances as a result of higher sales and

was partially offset by higher accrual balances.

The Company’s debt at June 30, 2003, was comprised primarily of $300 million of 7.125 

percent senior notes, issued in fiscal 2002 and due February 15, 2007, and $150 million of 7.32

percent senior notes due July 1, 2007. The Company also had mortgages, capital leases and other

long-term borrowings of $13.3 million at June 30, 2003. Cash and cash equivalents at June 30,

2003 were $147.9 million. The $31.7 million increase in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal

2003 was primarily due to cash generated by operations offset by capital expenditures.

21



In August 2002, the Company entered into a multi-currency revolving credit facility with a

group of eight banks, which committed $150 million to the Company for cash borrowings and

letters of credit through August 14, 2005. It replaced the prior credit facility that was scheduled

to expire in September 2002. There were no borrowings under the revolving credit facility at

June 30, 2003. Outstanding letters of credit under the revolving credit facility at June 30, 2003,

were $14.1 million. Unused availability under the revolving credit facility was $135.9 million at

June 30, 2003. The rates for borrowings under the revolving credit facility float with base rates.

At June 30, 2002, the Company’s debt was primarily comprised of the $300 million of 7.125 

percent senior notes, issued in fiscal 2002 and due February 15, 2007, and $150 million of 7.32 

percent senior notes due July 1, 2007. In addition, at June 30, 2002, the Company had a $125 

million revolving credit facility. There were no borrowings under the revolving credit facility at

June 30, 2002 and outstanding letters of credit were $10.9 million. The rates for borrowing

under the revolving credit facility float with base rates. The Company also had mortgages,

capital leases and other long-term borrowings of $16.6 million at June 30, 2002.

Capital expenditures, net of acquisitions, were $115.3 million in fiscal 2003. No operating lease

financing was utilized in fiscal 2003. In fiscal years 2002 and 2001, capital expenditures, net of

acquisitions and lease financing, were $104.5 million and $88.1 million, respectively. Expenditures

in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were for equipment and facilities required to increase capacity

and efficiency, primarily in our businesses that supply the automotive industry, and new product

tooling. The Company anticipates capital expenditures to approximate $140 million in fiscal 2004

primarily due to the rollout of additional automotive infotainment programs. Firm commitments

of approximately $27.0 million existed as of June 30, 2003 for fiscal 2004 capital expenditures.

The Company utilized operating lease financing for certain machinery and equipment in fiscal

years 2002 and 2001. The amounts financed were $17.1 million in fiscal 2002 and $34.6 million in

fiscal 2001.

Total shareholders’ equity was $655.8 million at June 30, 2003 compared with $526.6 million at

June 30, 2002 and $422.9 million at June 30, 2001. The increase in fiscal 2003 is due to net income

of $105.4 million and positive foreign currency translation of $56.2 million primarily due to the

strengthening of the Euro versus the U.S. dollar offset by common stock repurchases of $31.2

million. The increase in fiscal 2002 is primarily due to net income of $57.5 million and positive

foreign currency translation of $47.6 million due mainly to the strengthening of the Euro versus

the U.S. dollar.
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Since the share repurchase program began in 1988, the Board of Directors has authorized the

repurchase of a total of 8.0 million shares. In fiscal 2003, the Company acquired 583,491 shares

at a cost of $31.2 million. From the inception of the share repurchase program through June 30,

2003, the Company has acquired and placed in treasury 6,348,100 shares of its common stock

at a total cost of $171.9 million. We expect future share repurchases to be funded with cash 

generated by operations.

The Company will continue to have cash requirements to support seasonal working capital

needs, capital expenditures, interest and principal payments, dividends and share repurchases. In

June 2003, the Board of Directors approved a debt repurchase program of up to $100 million of

outstanding debt securities. No repurchases had been made at June 30, 2003. The Company

intends to use cash on hand, cash generated by operations and borrowings under its existing

revolving credit facility to meet these needs. The Company believes that cash from these sources

will be adequate to meet its cash requirements over the next 12 months.

The Company has dividend restrictions under its revolving credit agreement and the indenture

under which the Company’s 7.32 percent senior notes due July 2007 were issued. The most

restrictive of these covenants limits the Company to dividend payments and purchases of

capital stock of $50 million annually. Neither the credit agreement nor the indentures for the

senior notes limits the Company from transferring assets to or from its restricted subsidiaries in

the form of loans, advances or cash dividends.

The Company is subject to various risks, including dependence on key customers, economic

conditions affecting disposable consumer income and fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

A disruption in the operations of one of our key customers, such as an automotive strike, could

have a material adverse effect on the Company. In fiscal 2003, sales to DaimlerChrysler and

BMW accounted for 25.9 percent and 10.4 percent, respectively, of the Company’s sales.

Accounts receivable due from DaimlerChrysler and BMW accounted for 22.0 percent and 

7.8 percent, respectively, of total consolidated accounts receivable at June 30, 2003.
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The following table provides a summary of the Company’s contractual financing obligations by

due date:

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following table provides information as of June 30, 2003 about the Company’s derivative

financial instruments and other financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest

rates, including interest rate swaps and debt obligations. For debt obligations, the table presents

principal cash flows and related average interest rates by contractual maturity dates. For interest

rate swaps, the table presents notional principal amounts and weighted average interest rates by

contractual maturity dates. Notional amounts are used to calculate the contractual payments to

be exchanged under the interest rate swaps. Weighted average variable rates are generally based

on LIBOR as of the reset dates. Unless otherwise indicated, the information is presented in U.S.

dollar equivalents as of June 30, 2003.
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Fiscal Year

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

Short-term borrowings (a) $ 4,345 — — — — — 4,345

Senior notes (b) — — — 298,287 150,000 — 448,287

Capital leases (c) 756 876 522 398 405 1,616 4,573

Other long-term obligations (b) 208 175 166 139 142 7,896 8,726

Firm commitments for 

capital expenditures 26,986 — — — — — 26,986

Non-cancelable operating leases (c) 54,059 46,494 38,758 29,190 26,497 42,974 237,972     

Total contractual cash obligations $ 86,354 47,545 39,446 328,014 177,044 52,486 730,889

(a) As described in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) As described in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) As described in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Principal Payments and Interest Rates by Contractual Maturity Dates

Foreign Currency 

The Company maintains significant operations in Germany, the United Kingdom, France,

Austria, Hungary, Switzerland, Mexico, China and Sweden. As a result, exposure to foreign 

currency gains and losses exists. A portion of foreign currency exposure is hedged by incurring

liabilities, including loans, denominated in the local currency where subsidiaries are located.

The subsidiaries of the Company purchase products and raw materials in various currencies. As a

result, the Company may be exposed to cost changes relative to local currencies in the markets to

which it sells. To mitigate such risks, the Company enters into foreign exchange contracts and

other hedging activities. Also, foreign currency positions are partially offsetting and are netted

against one another to reduce exposure.

Some products made in the U.S. are sold abroad. Sales of such products are affected by the value

of the U.S. dollar relative to other currencies. Any long-term strengthening of the U.S. dollar

could depress these sales. Competitive conditions in the Company’s markets may limit its 

ability to increase product pricing in the face of adverse currency movements. However, due to
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Fair
Fiscal Year Value

(Assets)/
($millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total Liabilities

Liabilities:

Fixed Rate 
debt (US$) $ — $ — $ — $300.0 $150.0 $7.2 $457.2 $468.4

Average interest
rate 7.13% 7.32% 1.54%

Interest Rate
Derivatives:

Fixed to Variable
Interest Rate
Swaps (US$) $ — $ — $ — $200.0 $150.0 $ — $350.0 $(37.1)

Average pay
rate (a) 2.83% 3.43%

Average receive
rate 7.13% 7.32%

(a) The average pay rate is based on $175.0 million set at 3-month LIBOR set in arrears plus 1.62% and $175.0 million set at 6-month 
LIBOR set in arrears plus 1.88%.



the multiple currencies involved in the Company’s business and the netting effect of various

simultaneous transactions, the Company’s foreign currency positions are partially offsetting.

As discussed above, the Company is exposed to market risks arising from changes in foreign

exchange rates, principally the change in the value of the euro versus the U.S. dollar.

The Company estimates the effect on projected fiscal 2004 net income, based upon a recent 

estimate of foreign exchange transactional exposure, of a uniform strengthening or uniform weak-

ening of the transaction currency pairs of 10 percent will decrease net income by $17.9 million or

will increase net income by $17.9 million. As of June 30, 2003, the Company had hedged a major-

ity of its estimated foreign currency transactions using forward exchange contracts for fiscal 2004.

The Company estimates the effect on projected fiscal 2004 net income, based upon a recent

estimate of foreign exchange translation exposure (translating the operating performance of

our foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars) of a uniform strengthening or weakening of the U.S.

dollar by 10 percent to decrease net income $9.5 million or to increase net income $9.5 million.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions about

the future that may affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Among the most 

significant estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements are estimates

associated with the depreciable lives of fixed assets, the evaluation of net assets acquired and allo-

cation of related purchase prices for corporate acquisitions, the evaluation of the recoverability

of goodwill, evaluation of the recoverability of pre-production and development contract costs,

warranty liability, litigation, product liability, taxation and environmental matters. In addition,

estimates form the basis for the Company’s reserves for sales discounts, sales allowances, accounts

receivable, inventory, postretirement and other employee benefits. Various assumptions go into

the determination of these estimates. The process of determining significant estimates requires

consideration of factors such as historical experience, current and expected economic conditions,

and actuarial methods. The Company re-evaluates these significant factors and makes changes

and adjustments where facts and circumstances indicate that changes are necessary. Future events

cannot be determined with certainty. Actual results may differ from those estimates and such 

differences may be material to the financial statements.

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements are discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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Forward Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act and 21E of the Exchange Act of 1934. You should not place undue reliance on these

statements. Forward-looking statements include information concerning possible or assumed

future results of operations, capital expenditures, the outcome of pending legal proceedings and

claims, including environmental matters, goals and objectives for future operations, including

descriptions of our business strategies and purchase commitments from customers, among other

things. These statements are typically identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,”

“plan,” “intend,” “estimate,” and similar expressions. We base these statements on particular

assumptions that we have made in light of our industry experience, as well as our perception of

historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors that we

believe are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and consider the information in this

report, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of performance or results.

They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions.

Although we believe that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions,

you should be aware that many factors could affect our actual financial results or results of

operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the 

forward-looking statements. These factors include, among other things:

• changes in consumer confidence and spending;

• automobile industry sales and production rates and the willingness of automobile purchasers
to pay for the option of a premium branded audio system and/or a multi-functional 
infotainment system;

• model-year changeovers in the automotive industry;

• the ability to satisfy contract performance criteria, including technical specifications and due dates;

• competition in the consumer and/or professional markets in which we operate;

• the outcome of pending or future litigation and administrative claims, including patent and
environmental matters;

• work stoppages at one or more of our facilities or at a facility of one of our significant customers;

• the loss of one or more significant customers, including our automotive manufacturer 
customers;

• the ability to adapt to technological advances and innovation on a cost-effective and 
timely basis;

• currency fluctuations and other risks inherent in international trade and business transactions;

• our ability to enforce or defend our ownership and use of intellectual property; and

• general economic conditions.

In light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the results and events

contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in this report will in fact transpire.
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The consolidated financial statements and accompanying information were prepared by, and are the responsibility

of, the management of Harman International Industries, Incorporated. The statements were prepared in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, as such,

include amounts that are based on management's best estimates and judgements.

The Company’s internal control systems are designed to provide reliable financial information for the

preparation of financial statements, to safeguard assets against loss or unauthorized use and to ensure that

transactions are executed consistent with Company policies and procedures. Management believes that existing

internal accounting control systems are achieving their objectives and that they provide reasonable assurance

concerning the accuracy of financial statements.

Oversight of management’s financial reporting and internal accounting control responsibilities is exercised by the

Board of Directors through the audit committee which consists solely of outside directors. The committee meets

periodically with financial management and the independent auditors to ensure that each is meeting its responsi-

bilities and to discuss matters concerning auditing, accounting control and financial reporting. The independent

auditors have free access to meet with the audit committee without management’s presence.

Bernard A. Girod Frank Meredith

Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President,

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and

Secretary

Statement of Management Responsibility
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Harman International Industries, Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harman International Industries,

Incorporated and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of

operations, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30,

2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finan-

cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Harman International Industries, Incorporated and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003

and 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended June 30, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

As discussed in notes 1 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of

accounting for stock-based compensation and method of accounting for goodwill in the year ended June 30, 2003.

Los Angeles, California

August 15, 2003
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
Harman International Industries, Incorporated and Subsidiaries

June 30, 2003 and 2002
($000s omitted except share amounts) 

Assets 2003 2002  

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $    147,911 116,253  

Receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $13,785 in 2003 and $18,211 in 2002) 363,121 335,019

Inventories (note 2) 349,626 329,935  

Other current assets 106,966 95,556  

Total current assets 967,624 876,763

Property, plant and equipment, net (notes 3, 6 and 7) 393,920 325,812  

Goodwill 221,579 199,239

Other assets 120,535 78,466

Total assets $ 1,703,658 1,480,280

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings (notes 5 and 6) $  4,345 —

Current portion of long-term debt (note 6) 964 4,255

Accounts payable 176,846 193,110

Accrued liabilities 305,255 236,106

Total current liabilities 487,410 433,471

Borrowings under revolving credit facility (note 6) — —

Senior long-term debt (note 6) 497,759 470,424

Other non-current liabilities 62,704 47,523

Minority interest — 2,233

Shareholders’ equity (notes 6 and 11)

Preferred stock, $.01 par value.  Authorized 5,000,000 shares; none issued and outstanding — —

Common stock, $.01 par value.  Authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued 38,957,733 shares
in 2003 and 38,330,490 shares in 2002 390 383

Additional paid-in capital 324,757 310,166

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging derivatives (10,605) (1,499)

Minimum pension liability adjustment (6,462) (2,907) 

Equity adjustment from foreign currency translation 11,548 (44,686)

Retained earnings 508,008 405,811

Less common stock held in treasury (6,348,100 shares in 2003 and 5,807,300 shares in 2002) (171,851) (140,639)

Total shareholders’ equity 655,785 526,629

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7, 8 and 14)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,703,658 1,480,280

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
Harman International Industries, Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
($000s omitted except per share amounts)

2003 2002 2001  

Net sales $ 2,228,519 1,826,188 1,716,547

Cost of sales 1,577,372 1,326,317 1,268,512

Gross profit 651,147 499,871 448,035

Selling, general and administrative expenses 484,253 396,650 376,807

Operating income 166,894 103,221 71,228

Other expenses 

Interest expense 22,621 22,406 24,950

Miscellaneous, net 1,802 638 1,179

Income before income taxes and minority interest 142,471 80,177 45,099

Income tax expense 37,043 22,602 12,703

Minority interest — 62 32

Net income $    105,428 57,513 32,364

Basic EPS $         3.26 1.78 1.00

Diluted EPS $         3.10 1.70 0.96

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 32,344 32,261 32,296

Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 34,024 33,903 33,737

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Harman International Industries, Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
($000s omitted)

2003 2002 2001  

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $  105,428 57,513 32,364

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 88,545 78,084 67,201
Deferred income taxes (10,528) (12,379) 12,480
Loss on disposition of assets 4,814 6,897 2,226
Tax benefit attributable to stock options 18,250 4,169 1,008

Change in working capital, net of acquisition/disposition effects:
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables 4,265 7,021 (25,174)
Inventories 20,819 12,948 (37,342)
Other current assets 19,071 3,951 3,161

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (31,785) 25,900 (1,699)
Accrued liabilities and income taxes payable 36,311 17,332 695
Other operating activities (5,128) (11,065) (977)

Net cash provided by operating activities $  250,062 190,371 53,943

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for purchase of companies, net of cash acquired $ (11,211) (35,512) —
Proceeds from asset dispositions 1,026 5,526 4,135
Capital expenditures and software development costs (116,448) (125,144) (105,764)
Collection of loans — — 12,259   
Other items, net 618 2,772 105

Net cash used in investing activities $ (126,015) (152,358) (89,265)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings $ (229) (20,528) 4,826
Net increase (decrease) in long-term borrowings (54,079) 331,586 106,418
Repayments of long-term debt — (238,961) (9,426)
Debt issuance costs (1,580) (778) (1,179)
Repurchase of common stock (31,212) (3,667) (66,968)
Dividends paid to shareholders (3,231) (3,227) (3,222)
Exercise of stock options and other benefits, net (8,677) 8,488 3,799

Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities $ (99,008) 72,913 34,248

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 6,619 2,579 (543)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 31,658 113,505 (1,617)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 116,253 2,748 4,365

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  147,911 116,253 2,748

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing activities:
Fair value of assets acquired $ 30,455 62,487 —
Cash paid for the capital stock 11,211 35,512 —

Liabilities assumed $ 19,244 26,975 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Harman International Industries, Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
($000s omitted)

Accumulated   
Additional other Total 

Number of $.01 paid-in comprehensive Retained Treasury shareholders’
shares par value capital income (loss) earnings stock equity

Balance, June 30, 2000 17,031,304 $   188 292,897 (59,131) 322,383 (70,004) 486,333

Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — 32,364 — 32,364
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — (33,157) — — (33,157)
Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging 

derivatives — — — 2,785 — — 2,785

Total comprehensive income — — — (30,372) 32,364 — 1,992

Stock split adjustment 17,031,304 188 (188) — — — —
Exercise of stock options 199,323 1 3,798 — — — 3,799
Tax benefit attributable to stock options — — 1,008 — — — 1,008
Treasury shares purchased (2,201,300) — — — — (66,968) (66,968)
Dividends ($.10 per share) — — — — (3,222) — (3,222)

Balance, June 30, 2001 32,060,631 $   377 297,515 (89,503) 351,525 (136,972) 422,942

Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — 57,513 — 57,513
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — 47,602 — — 47,602
Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging 

derivatives — — — (4,284) — — (4,284)
Minimum pension liability adjustment — — — (2,907) — — (2,907)

Total comprehensive income — — — 40,411 57,513 — 97,924

Exercise of stock options and restricted 
stock granted 580,559 6 8,482 — — — 8,488

Tax benefit attributable to stock options — — 4,169 — — — 4,169
Treasury shares purchased   (118,000) — — — — (3,667) (3,667)
Dividends ($.10 per share) — — — — (3,227) — (3,227)

Balance, June 30, 2002 32,523,190 $   383 310,166 (49,092) 405,811 (140,639) 526,629

Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — 105,428 — 105,428
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — 56,234 — — 56,234
Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging 

derivatives — — — (9,106) — — (9,106)
Minimum pension liability adjustment — — — (3,555) — — (3,555)

Total comprehensive income — — — 43,573 105,428 — 149,001

Exercise of stock options, net of shares 
received 669,934 7 (8,684) — — — (8,677)

Tax benefit attributable to stock options — — 18,250 — — — 18,250
Stock option compensation — — 5,025 — — — 5,025
Treasury shares purchased   (540,800) — — — — (27,897) (27,897)
Treasury shares purchased and retired (42,691) — — — — (3,315) (3,315)
Dividends ($.10 per share) — — — — (3,231) — (3,231)

Balance, June 30, 2003 32,609,633 $   390 324,757 (5,519) 508,008 (171,851) 655,785

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements

include the accounts of the Company and subsidiaries after the elim-

ination of significant intercompany transactions and accounts. 

Reclassifications: Where necessary, prior years’ information has

been reclassified to conform to the 2003 consolidated financial 

statement presentation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in confor-

mity with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-

ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual

results may differ from those estimates, and the differences may be

material to the consolidated financial statements. 

Among the most significant estimates used in the preparation of the

Company’s financial statements are estimates associated with the

depreciable lives of fixed assets, the evaluation of net assets acquired

and allocation of related purchase prices for corporate acquisitions,

the evaluation of the recoverability of goodwill, evaluation of the

recoverability of pre-production and development contract costs, war-

ranty liability, litigation, product liability, taxation and environmental

matters. In addition, estimates form the basis for the Company’s

reserves for sales discounts, sales allowances, accounts receivable,

inventory, postretirement and other employee benefits. Various

assumptions go into the determination of these estimates. The

process of determining significant estimates requires consideration of

factors such as historical experience, current and expected economic

conditions, and actuarial methods. The Company re-evaluates these

significant factors and makes changes and adjustments where facts

and circumstances indicate that changes are necessary. 

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is recognized from product sales

upon shipment of goods when passage of title to goods transfer 

to the customer. Substantially all revenue transactions involve the

delivery of a physical product. The Company does not have multiple

element arrangements that contain undelivered products or services

at shipment.

Sales Discounts: The Company offers product discounts and sales

incentives including prompt payment discounts, volume incentive

programs, rebates and dealer order incentives. The Company reports

revenues net of discounts and other sales incentives in accordance

with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 01-09. 

Cost of Sales: Cost of sales includes material, labor and overhead 

for products manufactured by the Company and cost of goods 

produced for the Company on a contract basis. Expenses incurred 

for manufacturing depreciation and engineering, warehousing, ship-

ping and handling, sales commissions, and customer service are

also included in cost of sales. 

Warranty Liabilities: The Company warrants its products to be free

from defects in materials and workmanship for a period ranging from

90 days to five years from the date of purchase, depending on the

product. The warranty is a limited warranty, and it imposes certain

shipping costs on the customer and excludes deficiencies in appear-

ance except for those evident when the product is delivered. The

Company’s dealers normally perform warranty service for loud-

speakers and electronics in the field, using parts supplied on an

exchange basis by the Company. Warranties in international markets

are generally similar to those in the domestic market. Estimated war-

ranty liabilities are based upon past experience with similar types of

products. Please see Note 9, Warranty Liabilities, for addition infor-

mation regarding the Company’s warranties.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: Selling, general

and administrative expenses include non-manufacturing salaries and

benefits, occupancy costs, professional fees, research and develop-

ment costs, amortization of intangibles, advertising and marketing

costs and other operating expenses.

Advertising Costs: The Company expenses advertising costs as

incurred. When production costs are incurred for future advertising,

these costs are recorded as an asset and subsequently expensed

when the advertisement is first put into service.
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Amortization of intangibles: Amortization of intangibles primarily

includes amortization of intangible assets, amortization of capitalized

software costs, and amortization of costs, other than interest costs,

associated with debt issuance. In accordance with SFAS 142,

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill was not amortized

after July 1, 2002. Prior to SFAS 142, goodwill was amortized over

periods from 3 to 40 years, using the straight-line method, and 

impairment testing was based on an undiscounted cash flow analysis

for future periods. 

Research and Development: Research and development costs are

expensed as incurred. The Company’s expenditures for research

and development were $143.1 million, $109.9 million and $88.7

million for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001,

respectively.

Interest Expense: Interest expense includes interest expense and

amortization of original issue discount on notes, net of interest

income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents includes

cash on hand and short-term investments with original maturities of

less than three months.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.

Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method. Please

see Note 2, Inventories, for additional information. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is

stated at cost or, in the case of capitalized leases, at the present value

of the future minimum lease payments. Depreciation and amortiza-

tion of property, plant and equipment is computed primarily using the

straight-line method over useful lives estimated from 3 to 50 years.

Buildings and improvements are depreciated over 3 to 50 years or

over the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. Machinery and

equipment are depreciated over 5 to 10 years and furniture and 

fixtures are depreciated over 3 years. Please see Note 3, Property,

Plant and Equipment, for additional information.

Goodwill: Effective July 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142.

Under SFAS 142, goodwill and assets deemed to have indefinite lives

are no longer amortized, but are subject to an annual impairment

test. Other intangible assets continue to be amortized over their use-

ful lives. As of July 1, 2002, the Company performed the first of the

required impairment tests of goodwill. Additionally, the Company

performed its annual impairment test during fiscal 2003. No impair-

ment was present upon performing either of the fiscal 2003 tests. 

At June 30, 2003, the Company reported a goodwill balance of

$221.6 million. The Company cannot predict the occurrence of certain

events that might adversely affect the reported value of goodwill.

Such events may include, but are not limited to, strategic decisions

made in response to economic and competitive conditions, the

impact of the economic environment on the Company’s customer

base, or a material negative change in its relationships with 

significant customers. Please see Note 4, Goodwill, for addition

information regarding the Company’s goodwill.

Unbilled costs: The Company incurs pre-production and develop-

ment costs related to products developed for automobile manufactur-

ers pursuant to long-term supply agreements. The Company records

costs incurred pursuant to these agreements as unbilled costs in

accordance with EITF Issue No. 99-5, Accounting for Pre-Production

Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Agreements, or AICPA Statement

of Position (SOP) 81-1, Accounting for Performance of Construction-

Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts.

At June 30, 2003, total unbilled costs were $58.2 million, including

$38.0 million of pre-production costs and $20.2 million of costs

under development contracts. Unbilled costs reimbursable in the

next twelve months total $19.4 million and are recorded in other 

current assets. Unbilled costs reimbursable in subsequent years total

$38.8 million and are recorded in other assets.

At June 30, 2002, total unbilled costs were $40.6 million, all of which

were pre-production costs. Unbilled costs reimbursable in the next

twelve months total $13.5 million and are recorded in other current

assets. Unbilled costs reimbursable in subsequent years total $27.1

million and are recorded in other assets.
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Purchased and Deferred Software Costs: Software costs that are

related to conceptual formulation and incurred prior to the estab-

lishment of technological feasibility are expensed as incurred. Costs

incurred to purchase software to be sold as an integral component

of a product are deferred. Software costs incurred subsequent to

establishment of technological feasibility and which are considered

recoverable by management are deferred in compliance with SFAS

86 and amortized over the product’s life, usually three years. At June

30, 2003, deferred costs were $7.9 million, net of accumulated

amortization of $26.6 million. At June 30, 2002, deferred costs

were $13.2 million, net of accumulated amortization of $18.8 mil-

lion. Deferred costs, net, are included in other assets on the balance

sheet. Deferred costs are principally comprised of costs to acquire

or develop automotive navigation, telecommunications and net-

working software. 

Income Taxes: The deferred income tax asset or liability is deter-

mined by applying currently enacted tax laws and rates to the 

expected reversal of the cumulative temporary differences between

the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial statement and

income tax purposes. Deferred income tax expense is measured by

the change in the net deferred income tax asset or liability during the

year. The Company has not made provision for U.S. federal or foreign

withholding taxes on foreign subsidiary undistributed earnings as of

June 30, 2003, because such earnings are intended to be perma-

nently invested. It is not practicable to determine the U.S. Federal

income tax liability, if any, which would be payable if such earnings

were not reinvested indefinitely. Additional information regarding the

Company’s income taxes appears in Note 10, Income Taxes.

Postretirement benefits: The Company provides postretirement

benefits to certain employees. Domestic employees are covered by a

defined contribution plan. The Company’s contributions to this plan

are based on a percentage of employee contributions and, with

approval of the Board of Directors, employee compensation. These

plans are funded on a current basis.

Certain non-domestic employees are covered by non-contributory

defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded in confor-

mity with the funding requirements of applicable government 

regulations. Generally, benefits are based on age, years of service,

and the level of compensation during the final years of service.

Postretirement benefits are discussed further in Note 12,

Postretirement Benefits.

Foreign Currency Translation: The financial statements of sub-

sidiaries located outside of the United States generally are measured

using the local currency as the functional currency. Assets, including

goodwill, and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at the

rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation

adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive

income. In fiscal 2003, the foreign currency translation adjustment

was a positive $56.2 million compared with a positive foreign 

currency translation adjustment of $47.6 million in fiscal 2002.

Income and expense items are translated at average monthly

exchange rates. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions

of these subsidiaries are included in net income. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company is exposed to mar-

ket risks arising from changes in interest rates, commodity prices

and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company uses derivatives

in its management of interest rate and foreign currency exposure.

The Company does not utilize derivatives that contain leverage fea-

tures. On the date that the Company enters into a derivative, the

derivative is designated as a hedge of the identified exposure. The

Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments

and hedged items and measures the effectiveness of its hedges at

inception and on an ongoing basis. 

For each derivative instrument that is designated and qualifies as a

fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well

as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the

hedged risk are recognized in current earnings during the period of

the change in fair values. For each derivative instrument that is des-

ignated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of

the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a 

component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into

earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction affects

earnings. For derivatives that are designated and qualify as hedges

of net investments in subsidiaries located outside the United States,

the gain or loss is reported in other comprehensive income as a part

of the cumulative translation adjustment if the derivative is effective.

For derivative instruments not designed as hedging instruments, the

gain or loss is recognized in current earnings during the period of

change. For additional information regarding derivatives, please see

Note 15, Derivatives.
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Interest Rate Management: The Company has in place interest rate

swaps, which are designated as fair value hedges of the underlying

fixed rate obligations. The fair value of the interest rate swaps is

recorded in other assets or other long-term liabilities with a corre-

sponding increase or decrease in the fixed rate obligation. 

The changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps and 

the underlying fixed rate obligations are recorded as equal and 

offsetting unrealized gains and losses in interest expense in the

Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Foreign Currency Management: The fair value of foreign currency

related derivatives is generally included in the Consolidated Balance

Sheet in other current assets and accrued liabilities. The earnings

impact of cash flow hedges relating to forecasted purchases of inven-

tory is generally reported in cost of sales to match the underlying

transaction being hedged. Unrealized gains and losses on these

instruments are deferred in other comprehensive income until the

underlying transaction is recognized in earnings. The earnings

impact of cash flow hedges relating to the variability in cash flows

associated with foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities is

reported in cost of sales or other expense depending on the nature of

the assets or liabilities being hedged. The amounts deferred in other

comprehensive income associated with these instruments generally

relate to foreign currency spot-rate to forward-rate differentials that

are recognized in earnings over the term of the hedge. The discount

or premium relating to cash flow hedges associated with foreign cur-

rency denominated assets and liabilities is recognized in net interest

expense over the life of the hedge. 

Stock Based Compensation: On July 1, 2002, the Company adopt-

ed the fair-value method of stock based compensation per SFAS 123,

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, for all grants made on or

after July 1, 2002. As such, an expense based on service attribution

and the fair value of stock options granted in fiscal 2003 has been

reflected in net income. Prior to fiscal 2003, the Company accounted

for expense under the stock option plans according to the intrinsic-

value-based provisions of APB No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issue 

to Employees, and related interpretations. Options granted in prior

periods continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic-value-based

provisions of APB No. 25. Under this method, compensation expense

is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the

underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. Consequently, no 

compensation expense was recognized in fiscal years 2002 and 2001

for stock options issue under the stock option plans. Stock based

compensation is discussed further in Note 11, Stock Option and

Incentive Plan.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings

per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition pro-

visions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock based Compensation to all

of our outstanding and unvested awards in each period: 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

(000s omitted except 

per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001

Net income, reported $ 105,428 57,513 32,364

Add: Stock-based employee 

compensation expense included 

in reported net income,

net of tax 3,852 189 8,127

Deduct: Total stock-based 

employee compensation 

expense determined under 

fair value based method

for all awards, net of tax 7,252 5,622 13,227

Net income, pro forma $ 102,028 52,080 27,264

Basic EPS, reported $   3.26 1.78 1.00

Basic EPS, pro forma 3.15 1.61 0.84

Diluted EPS, reported $    3.10 1.70 0.96

Diluted EPS, pro forma 3.00 1.54 0.81

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In May 2003, the Financial

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 150, Accounting

for Certain Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and

Equity, which establishes standards for how an issuer classifies 

and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of

both liabilities and equity. This statement is effective for financial

instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and 

otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period

beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not believe that

the adoption of SFAS 150 on July 1, 2003 will have a material

impact on its financial statements.
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In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 149, Amendment of Statement

on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS 149 amends

and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instru-

ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other

contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS 133, Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS 149 is effective

for all contracts created or modified after June 30, 2003. The

Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 149 to have a signif-

icant impact on its financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 46,

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB

No. 51. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consol-

idated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors

in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial

interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance

its activities without additional subordinated financial support from

other parties. FIN 46 is effective for all new variable interest entities

created or acquired after January 31, 2003. For variable interest enti-

ties created or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of

FIN 46 will be applicable for the first interim or annual period begin-

ning after June 15, 2003. The Company has adopted the provisions

of FIN 46 and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s

financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-

Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of

SFAS 123. This Statement amends SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-

Based Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition for

a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-

based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends

the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent 

disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements. The 

disclosure requirements apply to all companies for fiscal years 

ending after December 15, 2002 and for interim periods beginning

after December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure

provisions of SFAS 148. See Note 11, Stock Option and Incentive

Plan, for additional information.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45, Guarantor’s Accounting

and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness of Other. This interpretation clarifies the

requirements of a guarantor in accounting for and disclosing certain

guarantees issued and outstanding. This interpretation is effective for

fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45

did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial state-

ments. Please see Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies, for

additional information.

In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-

21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. EITF 00-21

addresses the accounting for contractual arrangements in which rev-

enue-generating activities are performed. In some situations, the dif-

ferent revenue-generating activities (deliverables) are sufficiently

separable and there exists sufficient evidence for fair values to

account separately for the different deliverables (that is, there are

separate units of accounting). In other situations, some or all of the

different deliverables are closely interrelated or there is not sufficient

evidence of fair value to account separately for the different deliver-

ables. EITF 00-21 addresses when and, if so, how an arrangement

involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units

of accounting. EITF 00-21 is effective for interim periods beginning

after June 30, 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adop-

tion of EITF 00-21 will have a material effect on the Company’s finan-

cial statements. 

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs

Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS 146 addresses the

accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal

activities and nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for

Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an

Activity. It also substantially nullifies EITF Issue No. 88-10, Costs

Associated with Lease Modification or Termination. The provisions of

this Statement are effective for exit or disposal activities that are 

initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged.

The adoption of SFAS 146 did not have a material impact on the

Company’s financial statements.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. SFAS 144 addresses

financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of

long-lived assets. This Statement requires that long-lived assets be

reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-

stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured

by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash

flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment

charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of

the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. SFAS No. 144 requires

companies to separately report discontinued operations and extends

that reporting to a component of an entity that either has been 

disposed of (by sale, abandonment, or in a distribution to owners) or

is classified as held for sale. Assets to be disposed of are reported at

the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The

Company adopted SFAS 144 on July 1, 2002. The adoption of

SFAS 144 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial

position or results of operations in fiscal 2003.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 141, Business Combinations,

and SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS 141

requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all busi-

ness combinations. SFAS 141 also specifies criteria intangible assets

acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet to

be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. The Company

adopted SFAS 142 during fiscal year 2002 and, accordingly, all 

acquisitions were recorded under the purchase method.

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite

useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead be tested for impair-

ment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142.

As of July 1, 2002, the Company performed the first of the required

impairment tests of goodwill. Additionally, the Company performed its

annual impairment test during fiscal 2003. No impairment was 

present upon performing either of the fiscal 2003 tests. SFAS 142 also

requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized

over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and

reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS 144, Accounting

for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 143, Accounting for Asset

Retirement Obligations. SFAS 143 requires the Company to record

the fair value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the

period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the

retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acqui-

sition, construction, development and/or normal use of the assets.

The Company also records a corresponding asset that is depreciat-

ed over the life of the asset. Subsequent to the initial measurement

of the asset retirement obligation, the obligation will be adjusted at

the end of each period to reflect the passage of time and changes

in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. The

Company adopted SFAS 143 on July 1, 2002, and the adoption did

not have a material impact on the statement of financial position or

results of operations.

2. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

June 30 ($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Finished goods $ 126,729 133,685

Work in process 54,733 54,132

Raw materials 168,164 142,118

Total $ 349,626 329,935

The Company calculates inventory reserves using a combination of

lower of cost or market analysis and analysis of usage data. Lower of

cost or market analysis is typically applied to those items of invento-

ry that represent a high portion of the total value of inventory on-hand.

In some cases, lower of cost or market analysis is applied to a broad-

er population of similar inventory items. The high-value units typical-

ly represent a small percentage of the total inventory items, so identi-

fication of obsolescence or valuation reserve requirements for the bal-

ance of the inventory on-hand is accomplished using either historic or

forecast usage data to identify slow-moving or obsolete items.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are composed of the following:

June 30 ($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Land $  10,566 7,907

Buildings and improvements 182,215 155,199

Machinery and equipment 489,241 386,642

Furniture and fixtures 65,180 51,151

747,202 600,899

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (353,282) (275,087)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 393,920 325,812

4. Goodwill

Goodwill was $221.6 million at June 30, 2003, compared with

$199.2 million at June 30, 2002. The increase is due in part to the

acquisitions of two independent distributors of the Company’s

products during fiscal 2003 for which a total of $7.9 million in

goodwill was recorded at June 30, 2003. The remaining increase

was due to foreign currency translation. In accordance with SFAS

142, there was no amortization of goodwill in fiscal 2003.

Amortization of $7.7 million was recorded during fiscal 2002. 

Prior to July 1, 2002, goodwill was amortized over periods from 3 to

40 years, using the straight-line method. The following is a pro forma

presentation of reported net income, adjusted for the exclusion of

goodwill amortization net of related income tax effect:

Years Ended June 30

(000s omitted except 

per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001

Net income, reported $ 105,428 57,513 32,364    

Goodwill amortization, net of tax — 5,494 5,999

Net income, adjusted $ 105,428 63,007 38,363

Basic EPS, reported $  3.26 1.78 1.00

Goodwill amortization, net of tax — .17 .19

Basic EPS, adjusted $  3.26 1.95 1.19

Diluted EPS, reported $  3.10 1.70 .96

Goodwill amortization, net of tax — .16 .18

Diluted EPS, adjusted $  3.10 1.86 1.14

5. Short-Term Borrowings

At June 30, 2003, the Company had outstanding short-term borrow-

ings of $4.3 million at 5.6 percent. The short-term borrowings were

under lines of credit totaling $7.5 million in Japan and China. The

Company had no outstanding short-term borrowings at June 30,

2002. The Company did have short-term borrowings outstanding

during fiscal 2002 that were repaid with a portion of the net proceeds

from the issuance of $300 million of unsecured senior notes in

February 2002. 
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6. Long-Term Debt

The Company’s debt at June 30, 2003, was comprised primarily of

$300 million of 7.125 percent senior notes, issued in fiscal 2002 and

due February 15, 2007, and $150.0 million of 7.32 percent senior

notes due July 1, 2007. 

At June 30, 2003, the Company had a multi-currency unsecured

revolving credit facility with a group of eight banks committing $150

million to the Company for cash borrowings and letters of credit

through August 14, 2005. At June 30, 2003, the Company had no

borrowings under the revolving credit facility and outstanding letters

of credit of $14.1 million. Unused availability under the revolving

credit facility was $135.9 million at June 30, 2003. This agreement

contains covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the

Company and its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, 

create restrictions on subsidiary dividends and distributions, limit the

Company’s ability to encumber certain assets and restrict the

Company’s ability to issue capital stock of its subsidiaries. The most

restrictive provisions limit the Company’s ability to make dividend

payments and purchases of capital stock to $50 million annually. The

revolving credit agreement also requires the Company to maintain

certain interest coverage and leverage ratios. The Company was in

compliance with such covenants at June 30, 2003. 

The Company’s other long-term debt agreements contain covenants

that, among other things, limit the ability for the Company and its

subsidiaries to incur liens, limit sale and leaseback transactions, limit

domestic subsidiary indebtedness, and limit the Company’s ability to

make dividends and purchase capital stock to $50 million annually.

The Company was in compliance with the terms of its other 

long-term debt agreements at June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

The Company’s weighted average borrowings were $465.1 million,

$451.9 million and $397.2 million for fiscal years ended June 30,

2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The weighted average interest

rate in fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002 was 5.0 percent. In fiscal 2001, the

weighted average interest rate was 6.3 percent. 

Cash paid for interest for both short- and long-term borrowings was

$22.7 million, $23.3 million, and $24.9 million during the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Long-term debt is composed of the following: 

June 30 ($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Senior notes, unsecured,

due February 15, 2007, interest 

due semiannually at 7.13% $ 298,287 297,815

Senior notes, unsecured,    

due July 1, 2007, interest 

due semiannually at 7.32% 150,000 150,000

Carrying value of interest rate hedge 37,137 10,282 

Obligations under

capital leases (note 7) 4,573 4,579

Other unsubordinated loans                                   

due in installments through

2030, some of which vary 

with the prime rate, bearing 

interest at an average 

effective rate of 5.19% 

at June 30, 2003 8,726 12,003

Total 498,723 474,679

Less current installments (964) (4,255)

Long-term debt $497,759 470,424

Long-term debt, including obligations under capital leases, maturing

in each of the next five fiscal years is as follows ($000s omitted): 

2004 $       964

2005 1,051

2006 688

2007 320,539

2008 165,969

Thereafter 9,512
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7. Leases

The following analysis represents property under capital leases:

June 30 ($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Capital lease assets $  12,351 10,506

Less accumulated amortization (4,358) (3,537)

Net $  7,993 6,969

No new capital lease obligations were incurred in fiscal years 2003

and 2002. At June 30, 2003, the Company is obligated for the 

following minimum lease commitments under terms of noncance-

lable lease agreements:

Capital Operating

($000s omitted) Leases Leases

2004 $    888 $   54,059

2005 904 46,494

2006 532 38,758 

2007 405 29,190 

2008 412 26,497

Thereafter 1,621 42,974

Total minimum lease payments 4,762 $ 237,972

less interest (189)

Present value of minimum 

lease payments $  4,573

Operating lease expense, net of subrental income, under operating

leases having noncancelable terms of greater than one year for the

years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $65.4 million, $60.7

million, and $53.6 million, respectively. 

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments was

determined using market information and valuation methodologies. In

the measurement of the fair value of certain financial instruments,

quoted market prices were unavailable and other valuation techniques

were utilized. These derived fair value estimates are significantly

affected by the assumptions used.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts

payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values due

to the short-term nature of these items.

Long-Term Debt. Fair values of long-term debt are based on market

prices where available. When quoted market prices are not available,

fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based

on the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar

types of borrowing arrangements.

The Company used current market pricing models to estimate fair

value of financial instruments. The carrying value and fair value of

long-term debt were $498.7 million and $511.6 million, respectively,

at June 30, 2003.   

9. Warranty Liabilities

Details of the estimated warranty liability are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Beginning balance $  12,495 12,339

Warranty provisions 30,748 14,923

Warranty payments (cash or in-kind) (22,121) (14,767)

Ending balance $  21,122 12,495
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10. Income Taxes

The tax provisions and analysis of effective income tax rates are 

comprised of the following items:

Years Ended June 30 

($000s omitted) 2003 2002 2001

Provision for Federal income

taxes before credits

at statutory rate $ 49,865 28,062 15,785

State income taxes 135 344 314

Difference between Federal

statutory rate and foreign

effective rate (2,260) 526 1,086

Permanent differences 2 226 683

Tax benefit from export sales (2,660) (3,242) (1,336)

Loss on foreign investment (3,196) — —

Change in valuation allowance (1,454) (541) (2,927)

Change in other tax liabilities 855 (925) (1,325)

Losses without 

income tax benefit — — 2,419

Federal income tax credits (3,972) (2,000) (2,000)

Other (272) 152 4

Total $ 37,043 22,602 12,703

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

Years Ended June 30 

($000s omitted) 2003 2002 2001

Current:

Federal $ 13,727 9,158 (1,247)

State 395 380 209

Foreign 35,715 24,371 1,261

49,837 33,909 223

Deferred:

Federal (12,196) (3,454) (216)

State (260) (36) 146

Foreign (338) (7,817) 12,550 

(12,794) (11,307) 12,480

Total $ 37,043 22,602 12,703

Deferred taxes are recorded based upon differences between the

financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities and available

tax loss carry-forwards.

The following deferred taxes are recorded:

Assets/(liabilities)

June 30 ($000s omitted) 2003 2002

Federal tax loss $ 12,651 — 

Federal tax credits 10,247 7,612 

Inventory costing differences 7,170 5,948

Foreign net operating loss 9,064 17,649

Valuations and other allowances 18,037 13,594

Total gross deferred tax asset $ 57,169 44,803

Less valuation allowance (1,646) (11,559)

Deferred tax asset $ 55,523 33,244

Total gross deferred tax liability 

from fixed asset depreciation $(14,541) (13,335)

Foreign statutory accounting

including royalty payments (21,482) (10,937)

Total gross deferred tax liability $ (36,023) (24,272)

Net deferred tax asset $ 19,500 8,972

In fiscal 2002, $8.5 million of foreign tax losses were due to acquired

losses at CAA, a German subsidiary. There was a 100 percent valua-

tion allowance on this asset. In fiscal 2003, the losses were utilized

and the asset and related valuation allowance were removed. The

benefit of this utilization reduced goodwill. The Company has a

Federal research credit carryforward valued at $9.6 million and $7.0

million for fiscal years 2003 and 2002, respectively, and an alterna-

tive minimum tax credit carryforward valued at $0.6 million for both

years. The research credit carryforward will begin to expire in 2019.

The alternative minimum tax credit does not expire. For fiscal 2003,

the deferred tax assets include $7.2 million of federal tax loss carry-

forward related to stock option expense. The benefit for these losses

was included in additional paid-in capital.
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Tax benefits of $18.3 million in fiscal 2003, $4.2 million in fiscal

2002, and $1.0 million in fiscal 2001 associated with the exercise of

employee stock options were recognized in stockholders’ equity.

Management believes the results of future operations will generate

sufficient taxable income to realize the net deferred tax asset.

Cash paid for Federal, state and foreign income taxes was $11.4

million, $6.2 million, and $13.2 million, during fiscal years ended

June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Accrued income taxes were $51.9 million and $37.9 million as of

June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These balances are included in

accrued liabilities.

11. Stock Option and Incentive Plan

The 2002 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 2002 Plan) authorizes

the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights in tandem

with options, restricted stock and performance units to officers and

key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the

2002 Plan authorizes the automatic annual grant of options to the

non-officer directors of the Company and for a further automatic

grant to such non-officer directors each year in which the Company

achieves a specified level of return on consolidated equity.

The 2002 Plan replaced the Company’s 1992 Plan. The 1992 Plan

expired on November 9, 2002; however, options previously granted

pursuant to this Plan remain outstanding and will be exercisable in

accordance with the terms of the 1992 Plan. The 2002 Plan expires

on November 8, 2012. At June 30, 2003, a total of 2,969,000 shares

of Common Stock were reserved for issuance under the 2002 Plan.

Stock appreciation rights allow the holders to receive a predeter-

mined percentage of the spread between the option price and the fair

market value of the shares on the date of exercise. A grant of

restricted stock involves the immediate transfer of ownership of a

specified number of shares of Common Stock with a “substantial

risk of forfeiture” for a period of at least three years. The participant

that receives a restricted stock grant is entitled immediately to vot-

ing, dividend and other share ownership rights associated with the

restricted stock. A performance unit is the equivalent of $100 and is

awarded for the achievement of specified management objectives as

a condition to the payment of the award. The performance period

will not be less than three years.

Options to purchase shares of Common Stock have been granted

under both the 1992 and 2002 Plans. In fiscal 2003, the Company

granted 712,000 stock options under the 1992 and 2002 Plans. No

stock appreciation right, restricted stock or performance unit grants

have been made under the 1992 and 2002 Plans. Options granted are

at prices not less than market value on the date of grant and, under

the terms of the 1992 and 2002 Plan, may not be re-priced. Options

granted pursuant to the 1992 and 2002 Plans generally vest over five

years and expire ten years from the date of grant.

For purposes of awards granted under SFAS No. 123 and the pro-

forma disclosures for awards granted under APB No. 25, the fair value

of each option granted has been estimated on the date of grant using

the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following weighted

average assumptions used for grants in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001,

respectively: annual dividends consistent with the Company’s current

dividend policy, which resulted in payments of $0.10 per share in the

last three years; expected volatility of 60%, 60% and 56%; risk free

interest rate of 3.0%, 4.0% and 3.9%; and weighted average expect-

ed life of 5.4 years in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001. The weighted

average fair value of options granted was $26.49 in fiscal 2003,

$20.51 in fiscal 2002, and $14.81 in fiscal 2001.
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Stock Option Activity Summary: Years ended June 30

Weighted
Average 

Shares Exercise Price

Balance at June 30, 2000 4,358,274 $ 19.38

Granted 855,900 $  28.49

Canceled (69,850) $  20.71

Exercised (202,725) $  19.28

Balance at June 30, 2001 4,941,599 $  20.95

Granted 323,500 $  37.00

Canceled (704,020) $  20.26

Exercised (635,379) $  16.80

Balance at June 30, 2002 3,925,700 $  23.04

Granted 712,000 $  48.88

Canceled (58,882) $  25.09

Exercised (995,781) $  16.11

Balance at June 30, 2003 3,583,037 $  30.06

Options Outstanding at June 30, 2003

Weighted
average Weighted

Range of Number of remaining average
exercise prices options life in years exercise price

$ 9.88-16.90 22,472 0.90 $  14.19

$  17.20-23.44 1,610,856 4.87 $  21.52

$  24.31-36.10 898,709 6.65 $  28.11

$  36.83-47.00 351,000 8.10 $  37.68

$  48.23-57.88 700,000 9.25 $  48.91

$ 9.88-57.88 3,583,037 6.46 $  30.06

Options Exercisable at June 30, 2003

Weighted
Range of Number of average

exercise prices options exercise price

$    9.88-16.90 22,472 $  14.19

$  17.20-23.44 1,196,136 $  21.14

$  24.31-36.10 431,919 $  27.84

$  36.83-47.00 71,200 $  37.80

$  48.23-57.88 100 $  48.26

$    9.88-57.88 1,721,827 $  23.42

At June 30, 2002, options with an average exercise price of $19.43

were exercisable on 2,158,270 shares. At June 30, 2001, options

with an average exercise price of $17.98 were exercisable on

2,764,669 shares.

In August 1998, the Company granted 600,000 performance-based

stock options to a group of executive officers that only vested if

Harman’s common stock price achieved specified target levels and

the average closing stock price remained at or above those levels for

at least 30 consecutive calendar days. The Company measured the

cost of these performance-based options as the difference between

the exercise price and market price and recognized this expense over

the period to the estimated vesting dates and in full for options that

had vested. The Company recognized $8.6 million in fiscal year 2001

in compensation expense for the performance-based options. In

September 2001, the Company repurchased these options for an

amount equal to $18.125 per option, representing the difference

between $38.00 and the $19.875 exercise price of the options and

the options were canceled.

The Company adopted SFAS 123 in July 2002. Prior to fiscal 2003,

the Company accounted for expense under the stock option plans

according to the provisions of APB No. 25 and related interpretations.

Accordingly, no compensation expense was recognized in fiscal year

2002 for stock options issued under the stock option plans. In the

first quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company implemented the expense

recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123. Options granted in fiscal

years prior to fiscal 2003 will continue to be accounted for using the

intrinsic value method as described in APB 25. As a result of the

change in accounting method, the Company recorded compensation

expense for employee stock options granted during fiscal 2003

based on the fair value of the options at the date of grant and vesting

requirements. 
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12. Postretirement Benefits

Under the Retirement Savings Plan, domestic employees may 

contribute up to 50.0% of their pretax compensation. Each division

will make a safe harbor non-elective contribution in an amount

equal to 3.0% of a participant’s eligible contribution. With the

approval of the Board of Directors, each division may make a

matching contribution of up to 3.0% (50.0% on the first 6.0% of an

employee’s tax-deferred contribution); and a profit sharing contri-

bution. Profit sharing and matching contributions vest at a rate of

25.0% for each year of service with the employer, beginning with

the second year of service. Expenses related to the Retirement

Savings Plan for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

totaled $12.7 million, $8.5 million and $6.7 million respectively.

The Company also has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

(SERP) that provides retirement, pre-retirement and termination 

benefits, as defined, to certain key executives designated by the

Board of Directors. Company expenses related to the SERP for the

years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $2.5 million, $2.0

million and $2.1 million, respectively.

Additionally, certain non-domestic subsidiaries maintain defined ben-

efit pension plans. Plan benefits are generally based on age, years of

service, and average compensation during the final years of service. 

The following table illustrates the change in benefit obligation,

change in plan assets and funded status of the SERP and pension

plans:

Years Ended June 30 
($000s omitted) 2003 2002      

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $    47,843  42,114
Service cost                                          1,752  1,386
Interest cost                                        3,137 2,176
Amendments                                            3,757 —
Actuarial (gain)/ loss                                5,027   3,230
Benefits paid                                        (1,531) (1,063)

Benefit obligation at end of year          $    59,985 47,843

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at 

beginning of year  $       1,530 1,485
Actual return on plan assets                  (198) —
Asset transfer                                          71 —
Employer contribution                                   47 45

Fair value of plan assets at end of year  $     1,450 1,530

Reconciliation of funded status:
Funded status                                   $   (58,535) (46,313)
Unrecognized transitional amount                    88 188
Unrecognized prior service benefit             5,704 2,205
Unrecognized net (gain) or loss                   10,421   7,313

Prepaid /(Accrued) pension cost           $   (42,322)  (36,607)

Amounts recognized in the 
consolidated balance sheets:

Prepaid pension cost                           $    5,264 185
Accrued pension cost                               (59,840) (37,751)    
Intangible asset                                      5,792 —
Accumulated other 

comprehensive income                6,462   959

Prepaid /(accrued) pension cost        $   (42,322) (36,607)
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The following table illustrates the net pension expense and assump-

tions used in accounting for the SERP and pension plans:

Fiscal years Ended June 30 

($000s omitted) 2003 2002 2001 

The components of net pension 

expense were as follows:

Service cost                              $  1,752 1,386        1,850

Interest cost                                   3,137 2,176     2,021

Expected return on plan assets            192 —           —

Amortization of transitional 

amount     — (11)        505

Amortization of (gain) or loss            424 530            —

Net pension expense              $   5,505 4,081        4,376

Assumptions used in accounting 

for the pension plans were:

Interest rate                                    5.50% 6.00%        6.00%

Expected rate of return on 

plan assets           5.50% 5.50%        5.50%

Rate of increase in 

compensation levels         2.23% 2.30%        2.30%

Inflation rate                                  1.50% 2.30%        2.30%

Increase of social security 

contribution ceiling 2.30% 2.30%        2.30%

13. Business Segment Data

The Company designs, manufactures and markets high-quality audio

products and electronic systems for the consumer and professional

markets. The Company is organized into reporting segments by the

end-user markets they serve – consumer and professional. The chief

operating decision maker evaluates performance and allocates

resources based on net sales, operating income and working capital

in each of the segments. 

The Consumer Systems Group has operating segments which

design, manufacture and market audio and electronic systems for

vehicle, home audio, video and computer applications.  These oper-

ating segments market products worldwide under brand names

including Harman/Kardon, Becker, JBL, Infinity, Revel, Lexicon and

Mark Levinson.  

Net sales to DaimlerChrysler accounted for approximately 25.9%,

20.6% and 20.5% of consolidated net sales for the years ended June

30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Accounts receivable due from

DaimlerChrysler accounted for 22.0% and 18.6% of total consolidat-

ed accounts receivable at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

BMW net sales accounted for approximately 10.4%, 8.3% and 4.6%

of consolidated net sales for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002

and 2001, respectively. Accounts receivable due from BMW account-

ed for 7.8% and 6.9% of total consolidated accounts receivable at

June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Professional Group designs, manufactures and markets loud-

speakers and electronics used by audio professionals in concert

halls, stadiums, airports and other buildings and recording, broad-

cast, cinema and music reproduction applications. Professional

products are marketed worldwide under brand names including JBL,

AKG, Crown, Studer, Soundcraft, Lexicon, DOD, Digitech and dbx.

The following table reports external sales, operating income (loss),

assets, capital expenditures and depreciation and amortization by

segment.
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Segmentation

Years ended June 30 

($000s omitted) 2003 2002 2001

External sales:

Consumer Systems $ 1,782,521 1,401,446 1,267,358

Professional 445,998 424,742 449,189

Other — — —

Total $ 2,228,519 1,826,188 1,716,547

Operating income (loss):

Consumer Systems $ 190,797 110,445 94,517

Professional 15,398 16,802 1,948

Other (39,301) (24,026) (25,237)

Total $ 166,894 103,221 71,228

Assets:

Consumer Systems $ 1,216,400 1,023,623 803,435

Professional 292,086 295,534 315,265

Other 195,172 161,123 40,685

Total $ 1,703,658 1,480,280 1,159,385

Capital expenditures:

Consumer Systems $   98,617 88,227 69,908

Professional 15,597 13,636 17,147

Other 1,123 2,664 1,028

Total $  115,337 104,527 88,083

Depreciation and

amortization:

Consumer Systems $  71,648 61,357 45,795

Professional 14,246 14,552 17,213

Other 2,651 2,175 4,193

Total $  88,545 78,084 67,201

The results for a manufacturing facility that principally produced

professional products in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 has been

reclassified from Consumer Systems to Professional in fiscal year

2001 to conform to fiscal 2003 presentation.

Net sales, long-lived assets and net assets by geographic area for the

years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows. 

Years Ended June 30 

($000s omitted) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales:

U.S. $   645,542 714,774 715,449

Germany 808,876 459,042 372,320

Other Europe 377,497 289,711 293,101

Other 396,604 362,661 335,677

Total $ 2,228,519 1,826,188 1,716,547

Long-lived assets:

U.S. $   177,598 176,924 170,139

Germany 349,858 260,515 147,823

Other Europe 169,671 128,445 85,074

Other 38,907 37,633 44,337

Total $   736,034 603,517 447,373

Net assets:

U.S. $   280,286 253,551 202,498

Germany 319,556 208,483 166,265

Other Europe 15,567 39,315 49,872

Other 40,376 25,280 4,307

Total $   655,785 526,629 422,942
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14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has operating lease arrangements for certain machin-

ery and equipment used in several of our production facilities. These

leases expire over the next three years.  Upon expiration, the leases

have purchase options of approximately $22 million and residual

value guarantees of approximately $18 million.  No amount has been

accrued for the Company’s obligation at the end of the lease terms.

At June 30, 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries were involved in

several legal actions. The outcome cannot be predicted with 

certainty; however, management, based upon advice from legal

counsel, believes such actions are either without merit or will not

have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or

results of operations. In fiscal 2002, the Company recorded and paid

$8.3 million as the result of a judgment on appeal in a lawsuit.

Harman’s Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase a total of

8.0 million shares. Through June 30, 2003, the Company has

acquired and placed in treasury 6,348,100 shares of its common

stock at a total cost of $171.9 million. We expect future share repur-

chases to be funded with cash generated by operations. The Board of

Directors also approved a debt repurchase program of up to $100

million of outstanding debt securities. No repurchases had been

made at June 30, 2003. 

15. Derivatives

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge a

portion of its forecasted transactions. These forward contracts are

designated as foreign currency cash flow hedges and recorded at fair

value in the statement of financial position. The recorded fair value is

balanced by an entry to other comprehensive income (loss) in the

statement of financial position until the underlying forecasted foreign

currency transaction occurs. When the transaction occurs, the gain

or loss from the derivative designated as a hedge of the transaction

is reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

to the same income statement line item in which the foreign currency

gain or loss on the underlying hedged transaction is recorded. If the

underlying forecasted transaction does not occur, the amount

recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is

reclassified to the miscellaneous, net line of the income statement in

the then-current period.

Because the amounts and the maturities of the derivatives approxi-

mate those of the forecasted exposures, changes in the fair value of

the derivatives are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash

flows of the hedged items. Any ineffective portion of the derivatives

is recognized in current earnings. The ineffective portion of the deriv-

atives, which was immaterial for all periods presented, primarily

results from discounts or premiums on forward contracts.

As of June 30, 2003, the Company had contracts maturing through

June 2004 to purchase and sell the equivalent of approximately

$106.5 million of various currencies to hedge future foreign currency

purchases and sales. The Company recorded approximately 

$0.7 million in net losses from cash flow hedges of forecasted 

foreign currency transactions in fiscal 2003. At June 30, 2003, the

amount that will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehen-

sive income (loss) to earnings within the next twelve months is a loss

of approximately $3.0 million.

49



The Company has entered into cross currency swaps to hedge future

cash flows due from foreign consolidated subsidiaries under operat-

ing lease agreements. As of June 30, 2003, the Company had such

swap contracts in place to purchase and sell the equivalent of approx-

imately $35.6 million in various currencies to hedge quarterly lease

commitments through March 2006. The valuation calculation related

to the cross currency swaps was a negative $1.7 million for fiscal

2003. As of June 30, 2003, the amount that will be reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to earnings within

the next twelve months that is associated with these hedges is a loss

of $2.5 million. 

The Company entered into swap contracts in August 2001 and

October 2001 to convert interest on $150 million principal amount of

its 7.32 percent senior notes due July 1, 2007, from a fixed rate to a

floating rate. The Company also entered into swap contracts in March

2002 and April 2002 to convert interest on $200 million of the $300

million principal amount of its 7.125 percent senior notes due

February 15, 2007, from a fixed rate to a floating rate.  

The objective of these interest rate swap contracts is to offset

changes in the fair value of the Company’s fixed rate debt caused by

interest rate fluctuations. The interest rate swap contracts are carried

at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and the

related hedged portion of fixed-rate debt is carried at remaining prin-

cipal due net of the valuation adjustment for the change in fair value

of the debt obligation attributable to the hedged risk. The valuation

adjustment at June 30, 2003, was a positive $37.1 million.

Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps and the offset-

ting changes in the carrying value of the hedged fixed-rate debt are

recognized in interest expense in the Company’s consolidated

statement of operations. 

As of June 30, 2003, the Company had contracts maturing through

October 2003 to purchase and sell the equivalent of $306.1 million

of various currencies to hedge foreign currency denominated loans

to foreign subsidiaries. These loans are of a long-term investment

nature. Adjustments to the carrying value of the foreign currency

forward contracts offset the gains and losses on the underlying

loans. At June 30, 2003, market value on these contracts was a 

negative $8.5 million. 

16. Acquisitions

In October 2002, the Company acquired a distributor of consumer

home audio products in Japan. The purchase price, net of cash

acquired, was $3.0 million. At June 30, 2003, goodwill related to this

transaction was $3.3 million. The acquisition of this distributor is not

material to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The Company acquired a distributor of consumer home audio prod-

ucts in Germany in April 2003. The purchase price, net of cash

acquired, was $8.7 million. The Company recorded $4.6 million of

goodwill at June 30, 2003 related to this acquisition. The acquisition

of this distributor is not material to the consolidated financial state-

ments of the Company.
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17. Earnings Per Share Information

Years Ended June 30 

(000s omitted except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Net income $105,428 105,428 57,513 57,513 32,364 32,364

Shares of Harman common stock outstanding 32,344 32,344 32,261 32,261 32,296 32,296

Employee stock options — 1,680 — 1,642 — 1,441

Total average equivalent shares 32,344 34,024 32,261 33,903 32,296 33,737

Earnings per share $  3.26 3.10 1.78 1.70 1.00 0.96

Certain options were outstanding and not included in the computa-

tion of diluted net earnings per share because the sum of the

options’ exercise prices, related tax benefit and compensation cost

not yet recognized were greater than the average market price of the

common shares, therefore such options would have been anti-dilu-

tive. Options to purchase 525,497 shares of Harman common stock

with exercise prices ranging from $48.23 to $57.88 per share were

18. Quarterly Summary of Operations (unaudited)

The following is a summary of operations by quarter for fiscal 2003 and 2002:

Three months ended: ($000s omitted except per share amounts)

Fiscal 2003 SEPT 30 DEC 31 MAR 31 JUN 30

Net sales $ 490,759 559,977 554,454 623,329

Gross profit $ 140,125 159,422 162,966 188,634

Net income $ 9,802 27,606 30,614 37,406

EPS - basic $   0.30 0.85 .95 1.16

EPS - diluted $   0.29 0.81 .90 1.10

Fiscal 2002

Net sales $ 399,009 467,432 458,310 501,437

Gross profit $ 103,721 127,438 123,482 145,230

Net income $  5,031 11,730 14,648 26,104

EPS - basic $    0.16 0.37 0.45 0.80

EPS - diluted * $ 0.15 0.35 0.43 0.76

*Quarters do not add to full year due to changes in shares outstanding.

outstanding and not included in the calculation at June 30, 2003;

options to purchase 18,167 shares with exercise prices ranging

from $45.00 to $48.26 per share were not included at June 30,

2002; and options to purchase 12,419 shares with exercise prices

ranging from $36.10 to $45.00 per share were not included at June

30, 2001 because they would have been anti-dilutive.



Market Price Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

High Low High Low High Low

First quarter ended September 30 $ 54.580 38.270 $ 41.710 30.890 $ 41.375 30.250   

Second quarter ended December 31 62.740 46.980 46.270 31.230 48.000 32.300   

Third quarter ended March 31 63.650 42.600 53.840 42.600 37.050 24.900   

Fourth quarter ended June 30 79.580 48.950 58.160 48.950 39.730 24.800   

The Common Stock of the Company is listed on the New York Stock

Exchange and is reported on the New York Stock Exchange

Composite Tape under the symbol HAR. As of June 30, 2003, the

Company’s Common Stock was held by approximately 171 record

holders.

The table above sets forth the reported high and low sales prices at

the market close of the Company’s Common Stock, as reported on

the New York Stock Exchange, for each quarterly period for fiscal

years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001.

The Company paid dividends during fiscal years 2003, 2002 and

2001 of $.10 per share, with a dividend of $.025 per share paid in

each of the four quarters. 
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Except for the historical information contained in this Annual Report, the matters discussed herein

contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results 

to differ materially from those suggested in the forward-looking statements, including without 

limitation, the effect of economic conditions, product demand, currency exchange rates, labor disputes, 

competitive products and other risks detailed herein and in the Company’s other filings 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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